
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regional Planning Commission 
Kingston Springs, Tennessee 

 
June 8, 2023 

Meeting Packet 
 
 



 
 

Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission  
Meeting Agenda 

8 June, 2023  

1 
 

 
 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by _____________________at _____________pm. 
 
1. Roll Call of Voting Members: 

 
Keith Allgood   ______ 
Tony Thompson     ______ 
Tony Gross     ______ 
Mike Hargis   ______ 
Lauren Hill   ______ 
Mike Patenaude   ______ 
Craig Kitch   ______ 
Marie Spafford   ______ 
Bob Stohler   ______ 

 
2. Non-Voting Staff: 

 
Sharon Armstrong   ______ 
Dan Smola, P.E.                            ______ (Attends at Request of Planning Commission) 

 
3. Ex Officio Attendance:    
 

John Lawless, City Manager      ______ 
Attorney                                        ______ (Attends at request of Planning Commission) 

  
4. Declaration of Quorum by Chairperson. 
 
 
5. Motion to approve May 11, 2023, Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
 
 
6. Motion to approve June 8, 2023, Planning Commission meeting agenda. 

 
 
 

 

Submittal Deadline Date: May 12, 2023 



 

2 
 

7. Community Input 
 

Public Comments shall be:  
a.    limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the 
Agenda and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes 
unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 
b.    The Chairman shall limit comments to the Agenda items, to relevant, non-repetitive 
comments and shall restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 
 

8. Declaration of Conflict(s) 
 

In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then 
before the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose 
his/her interest and be disqualified from voting upon the matter, and the Secretary shall so 
record in the minutes that no vote was cast by such member. 

 
9. Old Business 

 
A.    Ellersly PUD – Update. 

a.     Stop Work Order issued 17 May 2023 
b.     Grading Plan and SWPPP Submissions and Developer/Owner decision 
 

B.    The Golf Club of DBI LLC. 
A.    The Golf Club of DBI LLC. Staff Inspection Report 
B.    PUD Master Plan Revision 

a.     TDEC ARAP for removal of Soil and Debris from the creek, NOC, 
Submission to TDEC 

b.     PUD Amendments 
1. KS Regional Planning Commission Bylaws 

a. Reconsideration of Bylaws with recommended amendments from the 
City Attorney. 

 
10. New Business 

 
A.  Town of Kingston Springs Plat – Acquisition of a portion of Map 91N, Grp D, 
Parcel 39.00 and replat of Map 91, Parcel 99. 
 
B.  Proposed Minor Subdivision – Eron-Stoll, Map 99, Parcel 026, 1620 CC Road.  
This parcel lies within the Kingston Springs Urban Growth Area. 
 
C.  Proposed Minor Subdivision – 601 Mt. Pleasant Rd., Robertson Trust, Map 
096O GRP A Parcel 014.00 
 

11. Other (For Discussion Only). 
 
a. None 

 
 



 

3 
 

12. Motion to Adjourn. 
 

 
The meeting was adjourned by __________________ at _________pm 

 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________                   __________________________________ 

Mike Patenaude     Jamie Dupré 
Planning Commission Chair   City Recorder 



 
 

Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 

11 May, 2023  

1 
 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Patenaude at 7:00 pm. 
 
1. Roll Call of Voting Members: 

 
Keith Allgood    Present (Arrived during recess) 
Tony Thompson      Present 
Tony Gross      Present 
Mike Hargis    Present 
Lauren Hill    Present 
Mike Patenaude    Present 
Craig Kitch    Present 
Marie Spafford    Present 
Bob Stohler    Present 

 
2. Non-Voting Staff: 

 
Sharon Armstrong    Present 
Dan Smola, P.E.                            Absent 

 

3. Ex Officio Attendance:    
 

Kellie Reed, Financial Director     Present  
Martha Brooke Perry, City Attorney    Present  

  
4. Declaration of Quorum by Chairperson. 

Chairman Patenaude declared a quorum. 
 
5. Motion to approve April 13, 2023, Planning Commission meeting minutes. 

Motion to approve April 13, 2023, Planning Commission meeting minutes made by  
Bob Stohler and seconded by Craig Kitch. Motion passed. 

 
6. Motion to approve May 11, 2023, Planning Commission meeting agenda. 

Chairman Patenaude suggested moving items 3 and 4 under Old Business to the end of the 
agenda. Since these items may take time, it will allow people here for other business to be 

 

Submittal Deadline Date: 14 April 2023  

 



 

2 
 

able to leave. Motion to approve May 11, 2023, Planning Commission meeting agenda made 
by Craig Kitch and seconded by Mike Hargis. Motion passed. 
 

7. Community Input 
 

Public Comments shall be:  
a. Limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the 

agenda and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes 
unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 

b. The Chairman shall limit comments to the agenda items, to relevant, non-repetitive 
comments and shall restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 

 
No community input. 
 

8. Declaration of Conflict(s) 
 

In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then 
before the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose 
his/her interest and be disqualified from voting upon the matter, and the Secretary shall so 
record in the minutes that no vote was cast by such member. 
 
Mike Hargis stated he would like to define what personal interest is. He stated that he 
thought they needed to define what that is. If he is a member of the United Methodist 
Church, that doesn’t mean he has any financial interest in that. He thought they should define 
what that means. Chairman Patenaude stated the paragraph is taken directly from the bylaws, 
and he would like to see that captured in the amendments. 

 
9. Old Business 

 
A. Ellersly PUD – Update. 

City Planner Armstrong stated in April she issued a grading permit to Energy Fit 
Solutions. She stated that she was told by the contractor that a miscommunication with 
the people in the field. She invited Mrs. Merville and spoke to the contractor on site and 
advised them of the issues. She said there are a number of soil and erosion issue in regard 
to the development. She received an email this afternoon with a revision to the soil and 
erosion plan, and will forward that to everyone. However, she has not had to review it. 
Austin Main introduced himself and stated he is with Dalamar Homes out of Nashville. 
Chairman Patenaude asked if the issue had been resolved. City Planner Armstrong said it 
is impossible to know until a rain event. They have taken measures to correct the issue by 
installing wireback, among other things that have been put into place. Until they file a 
development plan, other areas are not permitted at this point. Mr. Main stated as an 
immediate action, he had a crew out there the next morning and they have been out there 
every day since the event. He said they are following up with any issues that need to be 
addressed. Erosion measures have tripled since the event. The difficulty with the property 
is the entrance that was disturbed. The site will be inspected with the anticipation of rain 
tonight and will be inspected after that in order to come up with a plan. City Planner 
Armstrong stated that they are under an option to purchase within the agreement, and she 



 

3 
 

has advised them they would need to revise the PUD agreement and come back before 
the Planning Commission. 
 

B. The Golf Club of DBI LLC. 
1. The Golf Club of DBI LLC. Staff Inspection Report 

There were no stormwater issues following the last rain. City Planner Armstrong. 
has received three ESP reports since the last rain. There is a suggestion of a tree 
fall within that area that has since been cleaned up. The area is seeded and 
strawed. The only other update she has is that they have received a complaint 
regarding the use of the bridge which is a TDOT issue. She said the bridge is 
almost complete. There was a question about the grading for the section of the 
bridge within the city limits. She received an email from Mr. Hooper, the 
engineer, which is in the packet. Activity has been completed and they will focus 
on stabilizing the hillside. At the last meeting, it was shared that Mr. Hooper met 
with the county regarding the road. He is in the process of designing flow 
reduction measures with that area. 
 

2. PUD Master Plan Revision 
a. From Comfort Station/Halfway House to  -  RESTROOM/ 

SHELTER/ SELF-SERVE WATER/ SNACK STRUCTURE #1  700 
SF 20' 20' X 35' 0;  RESTROOM/ SHELTER/ SELF-SERVE 
WATER/ SNACK STRUCTURE #2 700 SF 20' 20' X 35' 0;  
HALFWAY HOUSE/ RESTROOM/ LIMITED STAFFED SNACK-
SANDWICH 2,900 SF 
City Planner Armstrong stated that plans have been updated on the master 
plan of the golf course to include self-service water/snack structure and 
they are requesting to update the PUD. There is a halfway house as well 
that will serve limited snacks and sandwiches at that location. As with any 
other facility that serves these types of items, they will be required to get a 
permit. She has requested the County Inspector Franklin Wilkinson and 
Chief Ivey look into alternative fire sprinkler items. Motion to approve the 
PUD master plan revisions as described above, made by Tony Gross and 
seconded by Craig Kitch. Motion passed. 
  

3. KS Regional Planning Commission Bylaws 
a. Reconsideration of Bylaws with recommended amendments from the 

City Attorney. 
Motion to recess made by Bob Stohler and seconded by Lauren Hill. 
Called back into order at 7:48 p.m. Chairman Patenaude stated he would 
note for the minutes that Keith Allgood arrived during the recess. Copy of 
old bylaws and comments on new proposed bylaws were available, but not 
a copy of the new proposed bylaws. Motion to defer the bylaw discussion 
made by Craig Kitch and seconded by Marie Spafford. Motion passed. 
 

4. Planning Services Contract with the KS Regional Planning Commission – 
with recommended amendments from the City Attorney. 
Chair Patenaude said we have a proposed City Planner contract from Sharon 
Armstrong for the Planning Commission to approve. We also have from City 



 

4 
 

Attorney Perry a series of comments about this proposed contract. Chair 
Patenaude made a summary to try to help clear it up. There are two parts to the 
legal comments about the proposed contract. 
 
Part 1 – a lengthy discussion that says for all these reasons, City Attorney 
recommends the contract be made between the City Planner and the Town instead 
of Planner and the Planning Commission. 
Part 2 – if you do not follow this advice, I would advise you to make the 
following changes, of which there are 10. 
Planner Armstrong addressed the City Attorney comment regarding business 
registration in TN after discussion with the City Attorney. No registration of the 
business is required in TN.  
 
Chair Patenaude said it seems the question on the table is a two-step question. 
Step number one is there will be questions and comments on whether this should 
be a contract between Sharon Armstrong and the Town of Kingston Springs or it 
should be a contract between Sharon and the Planning Commission. Patenaude 
said depending on how we go on there, we go to the second part or we don’t. 
 
City Attorney Perry recommended that the town amend its ordinances to establish 
that the city planners and experts that report to the planning commission shall be 
supervised by them.  
 
Lauren Hill motioned to not approve the planning services contract, and instead 
recommend to the City Commission that they revise their ordinance to clarify that 
the City Planner reports to the Planning Commission chair or his or her designee. 
Mike Hargis seconded the motion. Motion passed. 
 
City attorney made five recommendations or changes to amended bylaws. Chair 
found four other questions and the difference between the drafted amended 
bylaws and the standing bylaws we have now. Chair Patenaude motioned to defer 
the bylaws discussion to the next meeting, with a second from Mike Hargis. 
Motion passed. 
 
City Planner Armstrong announced that Engineer Dan Smola has turned in his 
resignation. 
 

10. New Business 
 
A.  Preliminary Plat - Proposed Minor Subdivision - Harrison/Clark, Map 92, 
Parcel 101, R-1 Low Density Residential District, 377 E Kingston Springs Rd.  
This was deferred from last month because the city did not know where the sewer 
connection was. It has since been found. The updated mylar is in front of the Chairman. 
With this it qualifies for approval. Motion to approve the two-lot subdivision described 
above made by Mike Hargis and seconded by Tony Gross. Motion passed. 
 
Motion to defer items B., C., and D. 



 

5 
 

City Planner Armstrong said that at the request of the City Manager and the surveyor, we 
are going to defer items B., C, and D. By state law these items cannot be approved 
conditionally. She received an email from Mr. McCain requesting the items be deferred. 
Motion to accept Mr. McCain’s deferral on items B., C., and D., made by Tony Gross 
and seconded by Mike Hargis. Motion passed.  
 
B.  Town of Kingston Springs Plat – Acquisition of a portion of Map 91N, Grp D, 
Parcel 39.00 and replat of Map 91, Parcel 99. 
See above. 
 
C.  Proposed Minor Subdivision – Eron-Stoll, Map 99, Parcel 026, 1620 CC Road.  
This parcel lies within the Kingston Springs Urban Growth Area. 
See above. 
 
D.  Proposed Minor Subdivision – 601 Mt. Pleasant Rd., Robertson Trust, Map 
096O GRP A Parcel 014.00 
See above. 
 

11. Other (For Discussion Only). 
 
a. None 

 
12. Motion to Adjourn. 

Motion to adjourn meeting made by Craig Kitch and seconded by Marie Spafford. Motion 
passed. The meeting was adjourned by Chair Patenaude at 9:02 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________                   __________________________________ 

Mike Patenaude     Jamie Dupré 
Planning Commission Chair   City Recorder 



Erosion Control and Stabilization Activities 

Update 5/15/23 
 

I. Events – 5/7/23 to 5/14/23  3.6” Rain 
a. 5/13, 6:00pm 4 pipe area running clear 
b. 5/13, 6:00pm Exit road running clear 

 
II. Overview 

a. Multiple rain significant events 
b. New exposure due to tree removal access by Lindsay Const. along S Harpeth 
c. Met with Mr. Gil to review conditions on Monday May 8 
d. Responded with clean up crews 
e. Several erosion control measures had to be re worked and/or replaced due to rain 

intensity 
f. Several areas too wet on steep slopes to correct immediately 
g. Observation of 4 Pipes 5/12 indicated cloudy water to sediment deposit creating 

significant turbidity – See ARAP activity below 
h. Additional supplemental crew scheduled for 5/16  

 
III. Current Activities 

 
a. Erosion control 

i. Fence repairs in miscellaneous areas 
1. See Daily Reports for detail 

ii. New measure installation – Silt Fence/Filter Sock Check Dams 
1. Hole 13 
2. Hole 18 tee area 
3. Adjacent to exit road 

iii. Topsoil installation and Hydroseeding on slopes 
iv. Sod in select areas 

  
b. Tennessee Erosion conducts twice weekly inspections 

i. Reports observations 
ii. Recommendation corrective actions or additional measures 

 
c. TDEC approved ARAP for removal of deposits identified by Davey Group 

i. Tennessee Erosion will be conducting this removal with a planned start date of 
5/22 

ii. Sam Parish of the Davey Group with Supervise 
 
 



d. Grassing 
i. Fescue Sod installation on slopes of holes 9 and 10 

ii. Hydroseeding of native areas 
iii. Bermuda Sod installation on holes 17, 10 

e. Grading 
i. Hole 11 

ii. Hole 16 
iii. Hole 13 

 
f. Tree work 

i. Tree removal near completion 
ii. Additional clearing work outside of LOD is near complete for this stage 

1. Tree debris to be mulched into berms 
2. Tree debris on Gil Property removed at Mr. Gil’s request 
3. Areas adjacent to road seeded where disturbed  
4. Disturbed area to be seeded 
5. Review of detention areas ongoing with Barge Cauthen 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

References 

Friday 5/12 4 Pipe Area Turbidity at Deposit 

 



 
Saturday 5/13 6:00pm   



 

 

 

  



Page C-1 of 3 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION (TDEC) 
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES 

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower, 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

1-888-891-8332 (TDEC)
General NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction Activities (CGP) 

Construction Stormwater Inspection Certification (Inspection Form) 

Best Management Practices (BMPs): 
Are the Erosion Prevention and Sediment Controls (EPSCs) functioning correctly? 
If “No,” describe below in Comment Section 

1. Are all applicable EPSCs installed and maintained per the SWPPP per the current phase? 
Yes No 

2. 
Are EPSCs functioning correctly at all disturbed areas/material storage areas? (permit section 
5.5.3) Yes No 

3. 
Are EPSCs functioning correctly at outfall/discharge points such that there is no objectionable 
color contrast in the receiving stream, and no other water quality impacts? (permit section 
5.5.3.5 and 6.3.2) 

Yes No 

4. 
Are EPSCs functioning correctly at ingress/egress points such that there is no evidence of 
track-out? (permit section 5.5.3.1) Yes No 

5. 
If applicable, have discharges from dewatering activities been managed by appropriate 
controls? (permit section 4.1.3) If “No,” describe below the measure to be implemented 
to address deficiencies. 

N/A Yes No 

6. 
If construction activity at any location on-site has temporarily/permanently ceased, was 
the area stabilized within 14 days? (permit section 5.5.3.4) If “No,” describe below each 
location and measures taken to stabilize the area(s). N/A Yes No 

7. 

Have pollution prevention measures been installed, implemented, and maintained to 
minimize the discharge of pollutants from wash waters, exposure of materials and 
discharges from spills and leaks per section 4.1.4? If “No,” describe below the measure 
to be implemented to address deficiencies. 

N/A Yes No 

CN-1173 (Rev. 03-22)  RDA 2366 

Site or Project Name: NPDES Tracking Number: TNR 
Primary Permittee Name: Date of Inspection: 

Current approximate 
disturbed acreage: 

Has rainfall been 
checked/documented daily? 

Yes  No 

Name of Inspector: 

Current weather/ground 
conditions: 

Rainfall total since last 
inspection: 

Inspector’s TNEPSC  
Certification Number: 

Site Assessment 
Yes  No 

Assessor’s TN PE registration 
number:  

Assessor’s TNEPSC Level II/CPESC number: 

Check the box if the following items are on-site: 
Notice of Coverage (NOC) 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
Weekly inspection documentation 
Site contact information 
Rain Gage 

Off-site Reference Rain Gage Location 

Bg17243
Highlight



Page C-2 of 3 

8. 
If a concrete washout facility is located on site, is it clearly identified on the project and 
maintained? If “No,” describe below the measures to be implemented to address 
deficiencies. (permit section 1.2.2) 

N/A Yes No 

9. 
Have all previous deficiencies been addressed? If “No,” describe the remaining 
deficiencies in the Comments section. 

 Check if deficiencies/corrective measures have been reported on a previous form. 
N/A Yes No 

Comment Section. If the answer is “No” for any of the above, describe the problem and summarize corrective 
actions to be taken. Otherwise, describe any pertinent observations: 

Certification and Signature (must be signed by the certified inspector and the permittee per Sections 5.5.3.11 (g) 
and 8.7.2 of the CGP) 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared by me, or under my direction 
or supervision. The submitted information is to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I 
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and 
imprisonment. As specified in Tennessee Code Annotated Section 39-16-702(a)(4), this declaration is made under 
penalty of perjury. 
Inspector Name and Title : Signature: Date: 

Primary Permittee Name and Title: Signature: Date: 

CN-1173 (Rev. 03/22) (Instructions on next page) RDA 2366 

Site or Project Name: NPDES Tracking Number: TNR 
Primary Permittee Name: Date of Inspection: 



Page C-3 of 3 

Construction Stormwater Inspection Certification Form (Inspection Form) 

Purpose of this form / Instructions 

An inspection, as described in subsection 5.5.3.9. of the General Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction 
Activities (“Permit”), shall be performed at the specified frequency and documented on this form. Inspections shall be 
performed at least 72 hours apart. Where sites or portion(s) of construction sites have been temporarily stabilized, 
or runoff is unlikely due to winter conditions (e.g., site covered with snow or ice), such inspection only has to be 
conducted once per month until thawing results in runoff or construction activity resumes. 

Inspections can be performed by: 

a) a person with a valid certification from the “Fundamentals of Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control
Level I” course,

b) a licensed professional engineer or landscape architect,
c) a Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control (CPESC), or
d) a person who has successfully completed the “Level II Design Principles for Erosion Prevention and

Sediment Control for Construction Sites” course.

Qualified personnel, as defined in subsection 5.5.3.10 of the Permit (provided by the permittee or cooperatively by 
multiple permittees) shall inspect disturbed areas of the construction site that have not been permanently stabilized, 
areas used for storage of materials that are exposed to precipitation, structural control measures, locations where 
vehicles enter or exit the site, and each outfall. 

Disturbed areas and areas used for storage of materials that are exposed to precipitation shall be inspected for 
evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering the site’s drainage system. Erosion prevention and sediment 
control measures shall be observed to ensure that they are operating correctly. 

Outfall points (where discharges leave the site and/or enter waters of the state) shall be inspected to determine 
whether erosion prevention and sediment control measures are effective in preventing significant impacts to 
receiving waters. Where discharge locations are inaccessible, nearby downstream locations shall be inspected. 
Locations where vehicles enter or exit the site shall be inspected for evidence of offsite sediment tracking. 

Based on the results of the inspection, any inadequate control measures or control measures in disrepair shall be 
replaced or modified, or repaired as necessary, before the next rain event if possible, but in no case more than 7 days 
after the need is identified. 

Based on the results of the inspection, the site description identified in the SWPPP in accordance with section 5.5.1 
of the Permit and pollution prevention measures identified in the SWPPP in accordance with section 5.5.2 of the 
Permit, shall be revised as appropriate, but in no case later than 7 days following the inspection. Such modifications 
shall provide for timely implementation of any changes to the SWPPP, but in no case later than 14 days following the 
inspection. 

All inspections shall be documented on this Construction Stormwater Inspection Certification form. Alternative 
inspection forms may be used as long as the form contents and the inspection certification language are, at a 
minimum, equivalent to the Division’s form and the permittee has obtained a written approval from the Division to 
use the alternative form. Inspection documentation will be maintained on site and made available to the Division 
upon request. Inspection reports must be submitted to the Division within 10 days of the request. 

Trained certified inspectors shall complete inspection documentation to the best of their ability. Falsifying inspection 
records or other documentation or failure to complete inspection documentation shall result in a violation of this 
permit and any other applicable acts or rules. 

CN-1173 (Rev. 03/22)  RDA 2366 





TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
Division of Water Resources 

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower, 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor, 
Nashville, Tennessee, 37243 

1-888-891-8332 (TDEC)
Application for Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP) & State §401 Water Quality Certification 

I OFFICIAL STATE USE ONL y I Site#: I I Permit#: I 
Section 1. Applicant Information (individual responsible for site, signs certification below) 

Applicant Name (company or individual): The Golf Club of DBI LLC I sos #: 001095579 Status: Active

Primary Contact/Signatory: Robert West Signatory's Title or Position: Secretary 

Mailing Address: 2 Ingram Boulevard City: La Vergne I State:TN I Zip: 37089

Phone: 615-287-4469 I Fax: E-mail: robert.west@ingramlegal.com

Section 2. Alternate Contact/Consultant Information (a consultant is not required) 

Alternate Contact Name: Samuel Parish 
Company: Davey Resource Group, Inc. Title or Position: Principal Consultant 
Mailing Address: 2607 W estwood Drive City: Nashville I State:TN I Zip: 37204
Phone: 615-400-0802 I Fax: E-mail: sam.parish@davey.com

Section 3. Fee (application will be incomplete until fee is received) 

(;]No Fee D Fee Submitted with Application Amount Submitted: $ 

Current application fee schedules can be found at the Division of Water Resources webpage at: 
htlps:llwww.tn.gov!environmentlpermit-permitslwater-permits1!aquatic-resource-alteration-permit--arap-.html 
or by calling (615) 532-0625. Please make checks payable to "Treasurer, State ofTennessee". 
Billing Contact (if different from Applicant): Name: Email: 

Address: Phone: 

Section 4. Project Details (fill in information and check appropriate boxes) 

Site or Project Name: The Golf Club of DBI LLC I Nearest City, Town or Major Landmark: Kingston Springs

Street Address or Location (include zip): S. Harpeth Road 37082

County(ies): Cheatham County 
MS4 Jurisdiction: 

N/ A 
I Latitude (dd.dddd): 36.064113 
I Longitude (dd.dddd): -87.080754

Resources Proposed for Alteration: [Z] Stream I River D Wetland D Reservoir 

Name of Water Resource (for more information, access http:lltdeconline.tn.govldwr ): Unnamed Tributaries to South Harpeth 
Brief Project Description (a more detailed description is required under Section 8): 

Manual sediment removal from onsite watercourses using hand tools such as buckets and shovels. 

Does the proposed activity require approval from the U.S. Anny Corps of Engineers, the Tennessee Valley Authority, or any other 
federal, state, or local government agency? OYes 0No 

If Yes, provide the permit reference numbers: 

Will the activity require a 401 Water Quality Certification: 0Yes D No

If Yes, attach any 401 WQC pre-filing meeting request documentation 

Is the proposed activity associated with a larger common plan of development: 0Yes 0No 
If Yes, submit site plans and identify the location and overall scope of the common plan of development. 

Plans attached? 0Yes 0No 
If applicable, indicate any other federal, state, or local permits that are associated with the overall project site (common plan of 
development) that have been obtained in the past (e.g., construction general permit and/or other ARAP): 

CN-1091 (Rev. 09-2021) (Page 1 of 3) RDA 2970 

Rcd DWR 
em 
4.18.2023

NR2304.128







 

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
Aquatic Resources Alteration Permit Application 

 
Sediment Removal for Stream Remediation 

 
KINGSTON SPRINGS, CHEATHAM COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

 
 
 

Prepared For: 
 

 
The Golf Club of DBI, LLC 

Attn: Robert West, Esq. 
2 Ingram Boulevard 
Lavergne, TN 37089 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

April 10, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

 

Corporate Headquarters 
295 South Water Street, Suite 300 

Kent, OH 44240 
800-828-8312 

 
Local Office 

2607 Westwood Drive 
Nashville, TN 37204 

615-294-2556 
 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

1 

General ARAP – Sediment Removal for Stream Remediation – Step # 1 

The Applicant is proposing to remove identified sediment deposits within onsite watercourses 
documented by Davey Resource Group (DRG) during a Site inspection on March 24, 2023. The 
sediment deposits proposed for removal include clay and silt deposits that appear to be highly mobile 
during high-stage stream flows and are likely contributing to in-stream turbidity. Many natural, 
fluvial pebble and cobble deposits and point bars were also identified in Site watercourse, but these 
cobble deposits and point bars were stable and did not appear to be contributing to in-stream 
turbidity; DRG determined that the removal of these stable, fluvial deposits would do more harm 
than good to the stream channels and should be left in place. The location of the Site is shown on 
Figure 1. Photographs of each proposed sediment removal location are provided in Appendix 2, 
and a map showing the location of each sediment deposit proposed for removal/photograph is 
provided as Figure 2 in Appendix 2. Information regarding the approximate size of each deposit is 
summarized on Table 1. 

The proposed sediment removal activities will be conducted after receiving authorization from 
TDEC to proceed. The Applicant has taken appropriate steps to prevent additional release of 
sediment by repairing, maintaining, and re-installing erosion prevention and sediment controls 
(EPSCs) as prescribed in the initial Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for this Site, 
dated August 9, 2021 and in subsequent SWPPP revisions, dated October 18, 2022 and January 25, 
2023. Additionally, the onsite SWPPP is updated as additional EPSC measures are upgraded and 
maintained. 

General ARAP – Sediment Removal and Stream Remediation – Step # 2 

1.  A complete Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP) application form is provided in 
Appendix 1. 
 

2. TDEC CGP Permit Number TNR245802. 
 

3. Since many of the identified sediment removal locations are within jurisdictional streams, 
there are no in-stream EPSC measures proposed.  Further releases will be mitigated at the 
release location through the repair, maintenance, and re-installation of EPSC measures 
shown in the SWPPP drawings. 
 

4. No rare, threatened, or endangered species are documented in onsite watercourses. 
 

5. Photographs of the watercourses prior to the release are provided in Appendix 3. These 
photographs have been extracted from a Hydrologic Determination (HD) report conducted 
on June 9, 2020, by Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc. The exact locations of the 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

2 

photographs were not included in the HD report and may differ from the locations of 
recoverable sediment deposits shown in Figure 2. 
 

6. It appears that sediment excursions from the Site occurred during rain events that exceeded 
the design storm event on November 29,2022 and possibly during additional high intensity 
rain events during initial grading activities. A TDEC Notice of Violation (NOV) dated 
October 4, 2022, also noted damaged EPSC measures that also likely contributed to sediment 
discharge into onsite watercourses (Appendix 4). In response to this NOV, the Applicant 
updated, maintained, and repaired EPSCs across the Site, and the Applicant continues to 
update and improve EPSC measures where inspections identify that additional or updated 
EPSC measures are necessary; all EPSC measures are regularly inspected, maintained, 
repaired, and updated in compliance with the CGP.  
 
 

7. Sediment, primarily comprising silt, clay, and small gravel, was released into onsite 
watercourses after various high intensity storm events that exceeded the design storms and/or 
at locations where damaged EPSC measures were identified in the above referenced NOV. 
Photo documentation of sediment deposits proposed for removal in Site watercourse is 
provided in Appendix 2.  
 

8. DRG identified, mapped, flagged, and photographed recoverable sediment deposits within 
onsite watercourses during a Site inspection on March 24, 2023. DRG has determined that 
the sediment deposits proposed for removal are likely contributing to in-stream turbidity and 
that their removal would not lead to additional stream impairment. Subsequent precipitation 
events may have altered the size, location, or number of deposits. Information regarding the 
dimensions of recoverable sediment deposits identified by DRG during this Site visit can be 
found in Table 1 below; a map showing the approximate location of these deposits can be 
found in Figure 2 of Appendix 2.  
 

Table 1. Approximate Locations and Dimensions of Recoverable Sediment 
Deposits 

Name 
Approx. Dimensions 

(ft.) 
Approx. Depth 

(in.) 

Approx. Volume of 
Deposit (ft3) 

STR-3-A 4x2 0.25 2.0 

STR-3-B 6x1 3.0 18.0 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

3 

Table 1. Approximate Locations and Dimensions of Recoverable Sediment 
Deposits 

Name 
Approx. Dimensions 

(ft.) 
Approx. Depth 

(in.) 

Approx. Volume of 
Deposit (ft3) 

STR-3-C 4x1 0.5 2.0 

STR-3-D 3x1 0.5 1.5 

STR-3-E 6x1 0.5 3.0 

STR-4-A 3x5 4.0 60.0 

STR-4-B 2x1 0.5 1.0 

STR-4-C 7x3 5.0 105.0 

STR-5-A 6x2 2.0 24.0 

STR-5-B 7x1 1.0 7.0 

STR-5-C 3x2 3.0 18.0 

STR-6-A 8x2 1.0 16.0 

STR-6-B 4x1 0.5 2.0 

STR-6-C 1x1 1.0 1.0 

STR-6-D 5x2 0.5 5.0 

STR-6-E 7x2 0.5 7.0 

STR-6-F 5x1 0.25 1.25 

STR-6-G 5x2 0.5 5.0 

STR-6-H 5x2 0.25 2.5 

STR-6-I 2x1 0.25 0.5 

STR-6-J1 8x3 0.5 12.0 

STR-6-J2 3x2 0.5 3.0 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

4 

Table 1. Approximate Locations and Dimensions of Recoverable Sediment 
Deposits 

Name 
Approx. Dimensions 

(ft.) 
Approx. Depth 

(in.) 

Approx. Volume of 
Deposit (ft3) 

STR-6-J3 4x1 0.5 2.0 

STR-6-K1 2x1 1.0 2.0 

STR-6-K2 7x2 2.0 28.0 

STR-6-L 7x2 3.0 42.0 

WWC-18-A 3x1 3.0 9.0 

 

9. Removal of sediment will be conducted by using hand tools such as buckets and shovels to 
minimize disturbance to the natural stream substrate and riparian vegetation to maximum 
extent possible. 
 

10. No stream remediation other than sediment removal is proposed at this time; if additional 
stream remediation is proposed in onsite watercourses at a later date, the proposed stream 
remediation scope of work will be submitted under a separate cover to the Division. Future 
sediment releases will be mitigated through the regular maintenance of EPSC control 
measures, including repairs and re-installation where required. 

Please contact us at (615) 400-0802 if we may provide additional information or address your 
questions regarding this ARAP. 

 

Very truly yours, 
Davey Resource Group, Inc. 

  

 
Samuel K. Parish, PG, CPESC 
Principal Consultant 
 

 

 
Justin W. Plemmons, MS 
Environmental Scientist 



249

W
Kin

gs

to
n
S
p
ri
n
g
s
R
d

Ha
rpe

th R
iver

249

40

40

G
o
lf
C

lub
Dr

A
n
d
e
rs
on

R
d

B
e
e
c
h
H
il
l
R
d

E
K
in
g
s
to
n
S
pr

in
gs

Rd

CC

R
d

Golf Club of
Tennessee

W
ill
is
B
ra
n
c
h

Price Lake

Craig Lake

W
ebb

R
idge Rd

Fo
r e
s
t
D
r

B
ru
s
h
C
r e

e
k
R
d

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS,
EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

¯0 0.25 0.5 Miles

Date: 4/6/2023
NAD 1983 2011 StatePlane Tennessee FIPS 4100 Ft US
87.08115°W 36.06675°N
Prepared for: Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP
Prepared by: JWP
Sources: USGS Kingston Springs 7.5-Minute Topographic Quadrangle, ESRI
Streets World Map

Approximate Property Boundary

Figure 1. Site Location
The Golf Club of DBI
Kingston Springs
Cheatham County, Tennessee



 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

ARAP Application Form  









   
 
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Sediment Removal Map and Photo Page 

 



STR-3-D

STR-3-C

WWC-18-A

STR-5-A

STR-6-A

STR-6-B

STR-6-C

STR-6-D

STR-6-E

STR-4-ASTR-4-B

STR-4-C

STR-3-E

STR-5-B

STR-5-C

STR-6-K1&K2

STR-6-J1,J2,J3
STR-6-I

STR-6-H

STR-6-G STR-6-F

STR-3-A

STR-3-B

STR-6-L

STR-3

WWC-24
WWC-25

WWC-4

WWC-3

WWC-5

WWC-17

WWC-23

STR-35

WWC-18

WWC-26 STR-5

STR-4

STR-13

STR-3

STR-7

STR-6

STR-6

STR-6

STR-34

STR-34

TN Department of Transportation

Figure 2. Proposed Sediment Removal Locations
The Golf Club of DBI
Kingston Springs
Cheatham County, Tennessee

¯0 200 400 Feet

Date: 4/6/2023
NAD 1983 2011 StatePlane Tennessee FIPS 4100 Ft US
87.07588°W 36.06535°N
Prepared for: Bradley Arant Bould Cummings LLP
Prepared by: JWP
Sources: TDOT Aerial Imagery; DRG Site Visit 03/24/2022

Approximate Property Boundary

Recoverable Sediment Deposits

HD Determinations

USACE Stream

USACE Ephemeral Stream

Channel InterruptionExtent Indicator



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

1 View of STR‐3‐A proposed sediment removal location on the right descending bank 
measuring approximately 4'x2', and 0.25" deep.

2 View of STR‐3‐B proposed sediment removal location on the left descending bank 
at upstream end of pool measuring approximately 6'x1', and 3" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

3 View of STR‐3‐C proposed sediment removal location on the right descending bank 
measuring approximately 4'x1', and 0.5" deep.

4 View of STR‐3‐D proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 3'x1', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

5 View of STR‐3‐E proposed sediment removal location around rocks at edge of right 
descending bank, measuring approximately 6'x1', and 0.5" deep.

6 View of STR‐4‐A proposed sediment removal location covered by leaves. Area is 
roughly 3'x3'x5', and 4" deep. Flagging was placed in a triangle around this 
sediment deposit; removal proposed only within this flagged triangle.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

7 View of STR‐4‐B proposed sediment removal location along right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 2'x1', and 0.5" deep.

8 View of STR‐4‐C proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 7'x3' and 5" deep. Sediment removal proposed within 
flagged square.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

9 View of STR‐5‐A proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 6'x2', and 2" deep. Proposed sediment removal includes 
only fine silt/clays; leave coarse material closer to bank.

10 View of STR‐5‐B proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 7'x1', and 1" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

11 View of STR‐5‐C proposed sediment removal location of partially submerged 
deposit along the right descending bank, measuring approximately 2'x3', and 3" 
deep.

12 View of STR‐6‐A proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 8'x2', and approximately 1 inch deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

13 View of STR‐6‐B proposed sediment removal location under tree root on left 
descending bank, measuring approximately 4'x1', and 0.5" deep, 

14 View of STR‐6‐C proposed sediment removal location measuring approximately 
1'x1', and 1" deep on left descending bank.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

15 View of STR‐6‐D proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank 
measuring approximately 5'x2', 0.5" deep.

16 View of STR‐6‐E proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 7'x2', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

17 View of STR‐6‐F proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank 
measuring approximately 5'x1', and 0.25" deep,

18 View of STR‐6‐G proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 5'x2', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

19 View of STR‐6‐H proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 5'x2', 0.25" deep.

20 View of STR‐6‐I proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 2'x1', and 0.25" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

21 View of STR‐6‐J1 proposed sediment removal locations on left descending bank. 
First deposit is approximately 8'x3', and 0.5" deep.

22 View of STR‐6‐J2 proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank. 
Second deposit is approximately 3'x2', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

23 View of STR‐6‐J3 proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank. 
Third deposit is approximately 4'x1', and 0.5" deep.

24 View of STR‐6‐K1 proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 2'x1', and 1" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

25 View of STR‐6‐K2 proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank 
measuring approximately 7'x2', and 2" deep.

26 View of STR‐6‐L proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank near 
confluence, measuring approximately 7'x2', and 3" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

27 View of WWC‐18‐A proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 3'x1', and 3" deep.



   
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 

HD Photographs of Selected Site Watercourses from 

 HD Report by Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc., June 9, 2020 

 

 

 



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 

Page 3 of 68 

Photo 5: View of STR-3 looking upstream. 

Photo 6: View of STR-3 looking downstream. 



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 4 of 68 
 

 

Photo 7: STR-4 

 

Photo 8: STR-4 



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 5 of 68 
 

 

Photo 9: Upstream view of STR-5. 

 

Photo 10: View of STR-5 looking downstream.  



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 6 of 68 
 

 

Photo 11:  Upstream view of STR-6 near begin. 

 

Photo 12: Downstream view of STR-6. Stream is much larger at eastern property 
boundary.  



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May 1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 53 of 68 
  

 

Photo 105: Up-gradient view of WWC-18. 

 

Photo 106: View of WWC-18 looking down-gradient.  



   
 
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 4 

TDEC Notice of Violation  dated October 4, 2022 



 

 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 

DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES 
Nashville Environmental Field Office 

711 R.S. Gass Boulevard 
Nashville, TN 37219 

Phone 615-687-7000 Statewide 1-888-891-8332 Fax 615-687-7078 
 
October 4, 2022 
 
Golf Club of Tennessee 
1000 Golf Club Dr 
Kingston Springs, TN 37082 
Email: david.ingram@dbibeverage.com  
 
Subject: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Complaint # 123784 
Permit #: TNR245340 
Golf Club Dr 
Cheatham County, Tennessee 

 
Dear Mr. Ingram: 
 
On September 15, 2022, staff from the Division of Water Resources (division) conducted a 
complaint investigation of construction activity at Golf Club of Tennessee and identified 
violations in need of corrective action(s). The violations included erosion prevention and 
sediment control measures in need of repair, an insufficient stream buffer, and missing required 
paperwork and documentation. Additional information related to these violations and requests 
for information time frames can be found below.  
 
Because unauthorized stream alterations and/or unauthorized discharges may impact the 
usefulness of the stream and its designated uses, including support of fish and aquatic life, 
livestock and wildlife watering, recreation, and irrigation they are violations of the Tennessee 
Water Quality Control Act of 1977. Therefore, this letter will serve as a formal Notice of 
Violation. Failure to remedy these violations within the specified timeframes may result in 
possible further action, which may include monetary penalties.  
 
To bring this site into compliance with the terms and conditions of the 2021 general NPDES 
permit for discharges of stormwater associated with construction activities, the division requests 
that you immediately implement and maintain all necessary measures to ensure this site’s 
stormwater discharge(s) have been treated to the maximum extent practicable.  
 



The division does not authorize access to private property and arrangements concerning the 
removal of sediment or other remediation efforts on adjoining properties must be settled between 
you and the adjacent landowners. No further work should be done in any stream or wetland areas 
until you have written authorization from the division. 
 
During our complaint investigation the division observed the following: 

 Posting of information not consistent with §7.2.1. of the 2021 general NPDES 
permit.  

 Failing erosion prevention and sediment control measures resulting in off-site 
sediment discharge §5.5.3.11e.  

 An insufficient buffer of an onsite stream resulting in sediment discharge and 
deposition §4.1.2. 

 Required twice-weekly inspections not readily available for review §5.5.3.11.  
 Required quarterly site assessments not readily available for review §5.5.3.8. & 

5.5.3.3.b. 
 Required rainfall logs and discharge monitoring reports not readily available for 

review §5.5.3.3.f.  
 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) not readily available for review 

§5.3.4.  
 
Achieve the following item(s) within the specified timeframe after receipt of this letter: 

1.) Re-establish 30-foot natural water quality riparian buffers within 7 days.    
 

2.) Submit a signed and dated modified SWPPP to address design failures within 15 days. 
 

3.) Repair and address all failing erosion prevention and sediment control measures in 
accordance with the signed and dated modified SWPPP within 7 days.  

 
4.) Submit completed and signed twice-weekly inspection reports from August 1st – 

September 30th, 2022 if available within 7-10 days 
 

5.) Submit signed and dated quarterly site assessments up until September 15th, 2022 if 
available within 7 days. 
 

6.) Submit rainfall logs and discharge monitoring reports from September 20th, 2021 – 
September 15th, 2022 if available within 7 days.  
 

7.) Schedule a follow-up visit with site personnel and DWR staff to take place within 30-45 
days of receipt of this letter. 

 
Be advised, these violations are being submitted to the Division of Water Resources Compliance 
and Enforcement Unit which may include monetary penalties. If you have any questions 
regarding this correspondence, please contact me at 629-666-0521 or by email at 
Clayton.Mahan@tn.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 



 
Clayton Mahan 
 
cc: Timmy Jennette, DWR Field Office 

Jessica Murphy, DWR Compliance and Enforcement 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

1 09/15/22 

Description 
Unbuffered stream on-site.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

2 09/15/22 

Description 
Sedimentation in unbuffered 
stream. 

 
 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. 

3 
 

Date 
 

09/15/22 

 

Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

4 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 

 

 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

5 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

6 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

7 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

8 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

9 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 
 

Photo No. Date 

 

10 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

12 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

13 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 
 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

14 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

15 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

16 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

17 09/15/22 

Description 
Sedimentation at the above 
outfall due to failing EPSC 
measures. 
 

 



CN-1067 (Rev. 26MAR19)  RDA 2366 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
Division of Water Resources 

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower, 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor, Nashville TN 37243 
1-888-891-8332 (TDEC) 

 
Compliance Inspection for General NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction Activities (CGP) 
 
 

Site/Project Name: Golf Club of DBI 
NPDES Tracking Number: TNR245340 
Date Coverage was Issued: 09/20/21 

Street Address or 
Location: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 
Start Date:  
Estimated End Date:  

Site  
Description: 

Mass Grading for new golf course. 
Latitude (dd.dddd): 36.067883 
Longitude (-dd.dddd): -87.084912 

County(ies):  Cheatham  
EFO: 
Nashville 

MS4 Jurisdiction:  No MS4 
Acres Disturbed: 235.2 
Total Acres:       

 

Name of Permittee 
(Developer/Operator): 

 

Name of Official Contact: David Ingram  Email:  david.ingram@dbibeverage.com Contact Phone:  

Address:   City:  
State: 
«Mailing_State» 

Zip:  
 

Construction Phase:  Site preparation      Grading      Construction      Final Stabilization 
Inspection Purpose:  Routine      Follow-up      Complaint      NOT 

 

 Yes No Comments 

Have all construction activities stopped and 70% uniform permanent cover established?         
 

 Yes No Comments 

Notable impacts to waters as a result of site activities/discharges?   See notes 

Evidence of insufficiently treated stormwater discharges at outfall locations?   See notes 

Evidence of structural EPSC measure failure/absence?   See notes 

Evidence of non-structural EPSC measure failure/absence?   See notes 

Unauthorized discharges?         

Evidence of offsite impacts?         

Evidence of construction buffer disturbance?         
Compliance Evaluation: Any Y = recommend NOV/EAR or follow-up - date:        
                                            Any Y = recommend follow-up ( email, letter, inspection, etc.) - date:        

 

 Yes No Comments 

Are copies of the SWPPP & inspection reports on site or made available?   Not readily available 

Has SWPPP been implemented & satisfactory?   Unknown 

Are 2/week inspections being performed?   Unknown 

Are inspection reports completed & signed?   Unknown 

Are inspection reports filled out by a qualified EPSC inspector?   Unknown 
Compliance Evaluation: Any N = recommend follow-up (email, letter, inspection, etc.) date:        

 

 Yes No Comments 

Are there ARAP violations or unauthorized stream/wetland alteration?   Unbuffered stream 
Compliance Evaluation: Y = perform follow-up ARAP inspection - date:        

 
 
 

TDEC Personnel/Information  EFO: Nashville 
  
 

Inspector’s Name (Print):   
Clayton Mahan  Signature:  

Date: 09/15/22 

Time: 14:00 
 
  



 Silt fencing along site perimeter is observed to be damaged, or at capacity in numerous locations. Many 
rock check dams were observed to be at or above capacity, and needing to me maintained (see photos 5-
17).  

 Sediment basins appeared to be completely absent from the site. 
 Some sediment deposition was observed in multiple streams near site outfalls or onsite (see photos 1,2 & 

4). 
 Insufficient or failing erosion prevention and sediment control measures at numerous outfalls (see photos 

3,6 &7) 
 An onsite stream is completely lacking a natural riparian buffer resulting in sediment runoff and deposition 

(see photos 1-2). 
 No SWPPP box, paperwork, or inspection reports were found onsite. The site was accessed via the west 

side construction entrance near Bronson Way.  



RDACN-1091 (Rev. ) (Page 1 of 3)

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
Division of Water Resources

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower, 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor, 
Nashville, Tennessee, 37243

1-888-891-8332 (TDEC)
Application for Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP) & State §401 Water Quality Certification

OFFICIAL STATE USE ONLY Site #: Permit #:

Section 1. Applicant Information (individual responsible for site, signs certification below)

Applicant Name (company or individual): SOS #: Status:

Primary Contact/Signatory:

Mailing Address: City: State: Zip:

Phone: Fax: E-mail:

Section 2. Alternate Contact/Consultant Information (a consultant is not required)

Alternate Contact Name:

Company: Title or Position:

Mailing Address: City: State: Zip:

Phone: Fax: E-mail:

Section 3. Fee (application will be incomplete until fee is received)

No Fee Fee Submitted with Application Amount Submitted:   $

Current application fee schedules can be found at the Division of Water Resources webpage at: 
https://www.tn.gov/environment/permit-permits/water-permits1/aquatic-resource-alteration-permit--arap-.html
or by calling (615) 532-

Billing Contact (if different from Applicant): Name: Email: 

Address: Phone:

Section 4. Project Details (fill in information and check appropriate boxes)

Site or Project Name: Nearest City, Town or Major Landmark:

Street Address or Location (include zip):

County(ies):
MS4 Jurisdiction: Latitude (dd.dddd):

Longitude (dd.dddd):

Resources Proposed for Alteration: Stream / River Wetland Reservoir

Name of Water Resource (for more information, access http://tdeconline.tn.gov/dwr ):

Brief Project Description (a more detailed description is required under Section 8):

If applicable, indicate any other federal, state, or local permits that are associated with the overall project site (common plan of
development) that have been obtained in the past (e.g., construction general permit and/or other ARAP): 

Is the proposed activity associated with a larger common plan of development: Yes No

If Yes, submit site plans and identify the location and overall scope of the common plan of development. 

Plans attached? Yes No

Does the proposed activity require approval from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the Tennessee Valley Authority, or any other 
federal, state, or local government agency? Yes No

If Yes, provide the permit reference numbers:

Rcd DWR 
em 
4.17.2023

NR2304.128



RDA 2366CN-1091 (Rev. ) (Page 2 of 3)

Application for Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP) & State §401 Water Quality Certification

Section 8. Technical Information Attached

Yes No

8.1

8.2

Detailed plans, specifications, blueprints, or legible sketches of present site conditions and the proposed 
activity. Plans must be 8.5.x 11 inches. Additional larger plans may also be submitted to aid in application 
review. The detailed plans should be superimposed on existing and new conditions (e.g., stream cross sections 
where road crossings are proposed)
For the proposed activity and compensatory mitigation, provide a discussion regarding the sequencing of 
events and construction methods

8.3 Depiction and narrative on the location and type of erosion prevention and sediment control (EPSC) measures for 
the proposed alterations

Section 5. Project Schedule (fill in information and check appropriate boxes)

Proposed start date: Estimated end date:

Is any portion of the activitycomplete now? Yes No

If yes, describe the extent of the completed portion:

The required information in Sections 6-11 must be submitted on a separate sheet(s) and submitted in the same 
numbered format as presented below. If any question in not applicable, state the reason why it is not applicable.

Section 6. Description Attached
Yes No

6.1 A narrative description of the scope of the project

6.2 USGS topographic map indicating the exact location of the project (can be a photographic copy)

6.3 Photographs of the resource(s) proposed for alteration with location description (photo locations should be noted on
map)

6.4 A narrative description of the existing stream and/or wetland characteristics including, but not limited to, dimensions 
(e.g., depth, length, average width), substrate and riparian vegetation

6.5 A narrative description of the proposed stream and/or wetland characteristics including, but not limited to, 
dimensions (e.g., depth, length, average width), substrate and riparian vegetation

6.6 In the case of wetlands, include a wetland delineation with delineation forms and site map denoting location of 
data points

6.7 A copy of all hydrologic or jurisdictional determination documents issued for water resources on the project site

Section 7. Project Rationale
Attached

Yes No

Describe the need for the proposed activity, including, but not limited to the purpose, alternatives considered and 
rationale for selection of least impactful alternative, and what will be done to avoid or minimize impacts to water resources

Section 9. Water Resources Degradation (degree of proposed impact)

Note that in most cases, activities that exceed the scope of the General Permit limitations are considered greater than de minimis
degradation to water quality.

Please provide your basis for concluding the proposed activity will cause one of the following levels of water quality degradation:

a. De minimis degradation, no appreciable permanent loss of resource values
b. Greater than de minimis degradation (if greater than de minimis complete Sections 10-11)

For information and guidance on the definition of de minimis and degradation, refer to the Antidegradation Statement in
Chapter 0400-40-03-.06 of the Tennessee Water Quality Criteria Rule:

For more information on specifics on what General Permits can cover, refer to the Natural Resources Unit webpage at



Application for Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP) & State §401 Water Quality Certification

CN-1091 (Rev. ) (Page 3 of 3) RDA2366

Section 10. Detailed Alternatives Analysis Attached
Yes No

Analyze all reasonable alternatives and describe the level of degradation and permanent loss of resource
10.1

alternatives. Provide associated rationale for selecting or rejecting all alternatives considered and demonstration that 
the least impactful practicable alternative was selected.

10.2 Discuss the social and economic consequences of each alternative

Demonstrate that the degradation associated with the preferred alternative will not violate water quality criteria for
10.3 uses designated in the receiving waters, and is necessary to accommodate important economic and social 

development in the area

Section 11. Compensatory Mitigation Attached 
Yes No

11.1 A detailed discussion of the proposed compensatory mitigation. Provide evidence of credit reservation if proposing to
utilize a third-party provider.

11.2 Analysis of any proposed appreciable loss of resource value using the TN Stream Mitigation Guidelines. Provide 
Stream Quantification Tool (SQT) results if applicable. Include Existing Condition Score (ECS) and debit/credit 
calculations.

11.3 Describe how the compensatory mitigation would result in no net loss of resource value 

11.4 Provide a detailed monitoring plan for the compensatory mitigation site if permittee-responsible project is proposed 

11.5 Describe the long-term protection measures for the compensatory mitigation site if permittee-responsible project is 
proposed (e.g., deed restrictions, conservation easement)

Certification and Signature
An application submitted by a corporation must be signed by a principal executive officer; from a partnership or proprietorship, by
the partner or proprietor respectively; from a municipal, state, federal or other public agency or facility, the application must be
signed by either a principal executive officer, ranking elected official, or other duly authorized employee. 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared by me, or under my direction or
supervision. The submitted information is to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment. As 
specified in Tennessee Code Annotated Section 39-16-702(a)(4), this declaration is made under penalty of perjury.

Printed Name Official Title Signature Date

Note that this form must be signed by the principal executive officer, partner or proprietor, or a ranking elected official in the case of a 
municipality; for details see Certification and Signature statement above. For more information, contact your local EFO at the toll-free 
number   1-888-891-8332   (TDEC).   Submit   the   completed   ARAP  Application    form    (keep    a    copy    for  your    records)    to
the appropriate EFO for  the  county(ies)  where  the proposed activity is located, addressed to Attention: ARAP Processing. You may  
also electronically submit the complete application and all associated attachments to water.permits@tn.gov.

EFO Street Address Zip Code EFO Street Address Zip Code

Memphis 8383 Wolf Lake Drive, Bartlett 38133-4119 Cookeville 1221 South Willow Ave. 38506

Jackson 1625 Hollywood Drive 38305-4316 Chattanooga 1301 Riverfront Pkwy., Ste. 206 37402

Nashville 711 R S Gass Boulevard 37243 Knoxville 3711 Middlebrook Pike 37921

Columbia 1421 Hampshire Pike 38401 Johnson City 2305 Silverdale Road 37601



 

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
Aquatic Resources Alteration Permit Application 

 
Sediment Removal for Stream Remediation 

 
KINGSTON SPRINGS, CHEATHAM COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

 
 
 

Prepared For: 
 

 
The Golf Club of DBI, LLC 

Attn: Robert West, Esq. 
2 Ingram Boulevard 
Lavergne, TN 37089 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

April 10, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

 

Corporate Headquarters 
295 South Water Street, Suite 300 

Kent, OH 44240 
800-828-8312 

 
Local Office 

2607 Westwood Drive 
Nashville, TN 37204 

615-294-2556 
 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

1 

General ARAP – Sediment Removal for Stream Remediation – Step # 1 

The Applicant is proposing to remove identified sediment deposits within onsite watercourses 
documented by Davey Resource Group (DRG) during a Site inspection on March 24, 2023. The 
sediment deposits proposed for removal include clay and silt deposits that appear to be highly mobile 
during high-stage stream flows and are likely contributing to in-stream turbidity. Many natural, 
fluvial pebble and cobble deposits and point bars were also identified in Site watercourse, but these 
cobble deposits and point bars were stable and did not appear to be contributing to in-stream 
turbidity; DRG determined that the removal of these stable, fluvial deposits would do more harm 
than good to the stream channels and should be left in place. The location of the Site is shown on 
Figure 1. Photographs of each proposed sediment removal location are provided in Appendix 2, 
and a map showing the location of each sediment deposit proposed for removal/photograph is 
provided as Figure 2 in Appendix 2. Information regarding the approximate size of each deposit is 
summarized on Table 1. 

The proposed sediment removal activities will be conducted after receiving authorization from 
TDEC to proceed. The Applicant has taken appropriate steps to prevent additional release of 
sediment by repairing, maintaining, and re-installing erosion prevention and sediment controls 
(EPSCs) as prescribed in the initial Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for this Site, 
dated August 9, 2021 and in subsequent SWPPP revisions, dated October 18, 2022 and January 25, 
2023. Additionally, the onsite SWPPP is updated as additional EPSC measures are upgraded and 
maintained. 

General ARAP – Sediment Removal and Stream Remediation – Step # 2 

1.  A complete Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit (ARAP) application form is provided in 
Appendix 1. 
 

2. TDEC CGP Permit Number TNR245802. 
 

3. Since many of the identified sediment removal locations are within jurisdictional streams, 
there are no in-stream EPSC measures proposed.  Further releases will be mitigated at the 
release location through the repair, maintenance, and re-installation of EPSC measures 
shown in the SWPPP drawings. 
 

4. No rare, threatened, or endangered species are documented in onsite watercourses. 
 

5. Photographs of the watercourses prior to the release are provided in Appendix 3. These 
photographs have been extracted from a Hydrologic Determination (HD) report conducted 
on June 9, 2020, by Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc. The exact locations of the 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

2 

photographs were not included in the HD report and may differ from the locations of 
recoverable sediment deposits shown in Figure 2. 
 

6. It appears that sediment excursions from the Site occurred during rain events that exceeded 
the design storm event on November 29,2022 and possibly during additional high intensity 
rain events during initial grading activities. A TDEC Notice of Violation (NOV) dated 
October 4, 2022, also noted damaged EPSC measures that also likely contributed to sediment 
discharge into onsite watercourses (Appendix 4). In response to this NOV, the Applicant 
updated, maintained, and repaired EPSCs across the Site, and the Applicant continues to 
update and improve EPSC measures where inspections identify that additional or updated 
EPSC measures are necessary; all EPSC measures are regularly inspected, maintained, 
repaired, and updated in compliance with the CGP.  
 
 

7. Sediment, primarily comprising silt, clay, and small gravel, was released into onsite 
watercourses after various high intensity storm events that exceeded the design storms and/or 
at locations where damaged EPSC measures were identified in the above referenced NOV. 
Photo documentation of sediment deposits proposed for removal in Site watercourse is 
provided in Appendix 2.  
 

8. DRG identified, mapped, flagged, and photographed recoverable sediment deposits within 
onsite watercourses during a Site inspection on March 24, 2023. DRG has determined that 
the sediment deposits proposed for removal are likely contributing to in-stream turbidity and 
that their removal would not lead to additional stream impairment. Subsequent precipitation 
events may have altered the size, location, or number of deposits. Information regarding the 
dimensions of recoverable sediment deposits identified by DRG during this Site visit can be 
found in Table 1 below; a map showing the approximate location of these deposits can be 
found in Figure 2 of Appendix 2.  
 

Table 1. Approximate Locations and Dimensions of Recoverable Sediment 
Deposits 

Name 
Approx. Dimensions 

(ft.) 
Approx. Depth 

(in.) 

Approx. Volume of 
Deposit (ft3) 

STR-3-A 4x2 0.25 2.0 

STR-3-B 6x1 3.0 18.0 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

3 

Table 1. Approximate Locations and Dimensions of Recoverable Sediment 
Deposits 

Name 
Approx. Dimensions 

(ft.) 
Approx. Depth 

(in.) 

Approx. Volume of 
Deposit (ft3) 

STR-3-C 4x1 0.5 2.0 

STR-3-D 3x1 0.5 1.5 

STR-3-E 6x1 0.5 3.0 

STR-4-A 3x5 4.0 60.0 

STR-4-B 2x1 0.5 1.0 

STR-4-C 7x3 5.0 105.0 

STR-5-A 6x2 2.0 24.0 

STR-5-B 7x1 1.0 7.0 

STR-5-C 3x2 3.0 18.0 

STR-6-A 8x2 1.0 16.0 

STR-6-B 4x1 0.5 2.0 

STR-6-C 1x1 1.0 1.0 

STR-6-D 5x2 0.5 5.0 

STR-6-E 7x2 0.5 7.0 

STR-6-F 5x1 0.25 1.25 

STR-6-G 5x2 0.5 5.0 

STR-6-H 5x2 0.25 2.5 

STR-6-I 2x1 0.25 0.5 

STR-6-J1 8x3 0.5 12.0 

STR-6-J2 3x2 0.5 3.0 



April 10, 2023 
Proposed Sediment Removal 
Kingston Springs, Cheatham County, Tennessee  

 

4 

Table 1. Approximate Locations and Dimensions of Recoverable Sediment 
Deposits 

Name 
Approx. Dimensions 

(ft.) 
Approx. Depth 

(in.) 

Approx. Volume of 
Deposit (ft3) 

STR-6-J3 4x1 0.5 2.0 

STR-6-K1 2x1 1.0 2.0 

STR-6-K2 7x2 2.0 28.0 

STR-6-L 7x2 3.0 42.0 

WWC-18-A 3x1 3.0 9.0 

 

9. Removal of sediment will be conducted by using hand tools such as buckets and shovels to 
minimize disturbance to the natural stream substrate and riparian vegetation to maximum 
extent possible. 
 

10. No stream remediation other than sediment removal is proposed at this time; if additional 
stream remediation is proposed in onsite watercourses at a later date, the proposed stream 
remediation scope of work will be submitted under a separate cover to the Division. Future 
sediment releases will be mitigated through the regular maintenance of EPSC control 
measures, including repairs and re-installation where required. 

Please contact us at (615) 400-0802 if we may provide additional information or address your 
questions regarding this ARAP. 

 

Very truly yours, 
Davey Resource Group, Inc. 

  

 
Samuel K. Parish, PG, CPESC 
Principal Consultant 
 

 

 
Justin W. Plemmons, MS 
Environmental Scientist 



249

W
Kin

gs

to
n
S
p
ri
n
g
s
R
d

Ha
rpe

th R
iver

249

40

40

G
o
lf
C

lub
Dr

A
n
d
e
rs
on

R
d

B
e
e
c
h
H
il
l
R
d

E
K
in
g
s
to
n
S
pr

in
gs

Rd

CC

R
d

Golf Club of
Tennessee

W
ill
is
B
ra
n
c
h

Price Lake

Craig Lake

W
ebb

R
idge Rd

Fo
r e
s
t
D
r

B
ru
s
h
C
r e

e
k
R
d

Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS,
EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

¯0 0.25 0.5 Miles

Date: 4/6/2023
NAD 1983 2011 StatePlane Tennessee FIPS 4100 Ft US
87.08115°W 36.06675°N
Prepared for: Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP
Prepared by: JWP
Sources: USGS Kingston Springs 7.5-Minute Topographic Quadrangle, ESRI
Streets World Map

Approximate Property Boundary

Figure 1. Site Location
The Golf Club of DBI
Kingston Springs
Cheatham County, Tennessee



   
 
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Sediment Removal Map and Photo Page 

 



STR-3-D

STR-3-C

WWC-18-A

STR-5-A

STR-6-A

STR-6-B

STR-6-C

STR-6-D

STR-6-E

STR-4-ASTR-4-B

STR-4-C

STR-3-E

STR-5-B

STR-5-C

STR-6-K1&K2

STR-6-J1,J2,J3
STR-6-I

STR-6-H

STR-6-G STR-6-F

STR-3-A

STR-3-B

STR-6-L

STR-3

WWC-24
WWC-25

WWC-4

WWC-3

WWC-5

WWC-17

WWC-23

STR-35

WWC-18

WWC-26 STR-5

STR-4

STR-13

STR-3

STR-7

STR-6

STR-6

STR-6

STR-34

STR-34

TN Department of Transportation

Figure 2. Proposed Sediment Removal Locations
The Golf Club of DBI
Kingston Springs
Cheatham County, Tennessee

¯0 200 400 Feet

Date: 4/6/2023
NAD 1983 2011 StatePlane Tennessee FIPS 4100 Ft US
87.07588°W 36.06535°N
Prepared for: Bradley Arant Bould Cummings LLP
Prepared by: JWP
Sources: TDOT Aerial Imagery; DRG Site Visit 03/24/2022

Approximate Property Boundary

Recoverable Sediment Deposits

HD Determinations

USACE Stream

USACE Ephemeral Stream

Channel InterruptionExtent Indicator



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

1 View of STR‐3‐A proposed sediment removal location on the right descending bank 
measuring approximately 4'x2', and 0.25" deep.

2 View of STR‐3‐B proposed sediment removal location on the left descending bank 
at upstream end of pool measuring approximately 6'x1', and 3" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

3 View of STR‐3‐C proposed sediment removal location on the right descending bank 
measuring approximately 4'x1', and 0.5" deep.

4 View of STR‐3‐D proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 3'x1', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

5 View of STR‐3‐E proposed sediment removal location around rocks at edge of right 
descending bank, measuring approximately 6'x1', and 0.5" deep.

6 View of STR‐4‐A proposed sediment removal location covered by leaves. Area is 
roughly 3'x3'x5', and 4" deep. Flagging was placed in a triangle around this 
sediment deposit; removal proposed only within this flagged triangle.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

7 View of STR‐4‐B proposed sediment removal location along right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 2'x1', and 0.5" deep.

8 View of STR‐4‐C proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 7'x3' and 5" deep. Sediment removal proposed within 
flagged square.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

9 View of STR‐5‐A proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 6'x2', and 2" deep. Proposed sediment removal includes 
only fine silt/clays; leave coarse material closer to bank.

10 View of STR‐5‐B proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 7'x1', and 1" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

11 View of STR‐5‐C proposed sediment removal location of partially submerged 
deposit along the right descending bank, measuring approximately 2'x3', and 3" 
deep.

12 View of STR‐6‐A proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 8'x2', and approximately 1 inch deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

13 View of STR‐6‐B proposed sediment removal location under tree root on left 
descending bank, measuring approximately 4'x1', and 0.5" deep, 

14 View of STR‐6‐C proposed sediment removal location measuring approximately 
1'x1', and 1" deep on left descending bank.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

15 View of STR‐6‐D proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank 
measuring approximately 5'x2', 0.5" deep.

16 View of STR‐6‐E proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 7'x2', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

17 View of STR‐6‐F proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank 
measuring approximately 5'x1', and 0.25" deep,

18 View of STR‐6‐G proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank, 
measuring approximately 5'x2', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

19 View of STR‐6‐H proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 5'x2', 0.25" deep.

20 View of STR‐6‐I proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank 
measuring approximately 2'x1', and 0.25" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

21 View of STR‐6‐J1 proposed sediment removal locations on left descending bank. 
First deposit is approximately 8'x3', and 0.5" deep.

22 View of STR‐6‐J2 proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank. 
Second deposit is approximately 3'x2', and 0.5" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

23 View of STR‐6‐J3 proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank. 
Third deposit is approximately 4'x1', and 0.5" deep.

24 View of STR‐6‐K1 proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 2'x1', and 1" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

25 View of STR‐6‐K2 proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank 
measuring approximately 7'x2', and 2" deep.

26 View of STR‐6‐L proposed sediment removal location on right descending bank near 
confluence, measuring approximately 7'x2', and 3" deep.



Davey Resource Group The Golf Club of DBI, LLC / Photos Taken 
03/24/2023

27 View of WWC‐18‐A proposed sediment removal location on left descending bank, 
measuring approximately 3'x1', and 3" deep.



   
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 

HD Photographs of Selected Site Watercourses from 

 HD Report by Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc., June 9, 2020 

 

 

 



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 

Page 3 of 68 

Photo 5: View of STR-3 looking upstream. 

Photo 6: View of STR-3 looking downstream. 



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 4 of 68 
 

 

Photo 7: STR-4 

 

Photo 8: STR-4 



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 5 of 68 
 

 

Photo 9: Upstream view of STR-5. 

 

Photo 10: View of STR-5 looking downstream.  



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 6 of 68 
 

 

Photo 11:  Upstream view of STR-6 near begin. 

 

Photo 12: Downstream view of STR-6. Stream is much larger at eastern property 
boundary.  



Hydrologic Determination Photo Summary: April 27 – May 1, 2020 
Project Description: Golf Club of TN- Ingram Parcels 
CEC Project# 300-037 
 

Page 53 of 68 
  

 

Photo 105: Up-gradient view of WWC-18. 

 

Photo 106: View of WWC-18 looking down-gradient.  



   
 
 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 4 

TDEC Notice of Violation  dated October 4, 2022 



 

 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 

DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES 
Nashville Environmental Field Office 

711 R.S. Gass Boulevard 
Nashville, TN 37219 

Phone 615-687-7000 Statewide 1-888-891-8332 Fax 615-687-7078 
 
October 4, 2022 
 
Golf Club of Tennessee 
1000 Golf Club Dr 
Kingston Springs, TN 37082 
Email: david.ingram@dbibeverage.com  
 
Subject: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Complaint # 123784 
Permit #: TNR245340 
Golf Club Dr 
Cheatham County, Tennessee 

 
Dear Mr. Ingram: 
 
On September 15, 2022, staff from the Division of Water Resources (division) conducted a 
complaint investigation of construction activity at Golf Club of Tennessee and identified 
violations in need of corrective action(s). The violations included erosion prevention and 
sediment control measures in need of repair, an insufficient stream buffer, and missing required 
paperwork and documentation. Additional information related to these violations and requests 
for information time frames can be found below.  
 
Because unauthorized stream alterations and/or unauthorized discharges may impact the 
usefulness of the stream and its designated uses, including support of fish and aquatic life, 
livestock and wildlife watering, recreation, and irrigation they are violations of the Tennessee 
Water Quality Control Act of 1977. Therefore, this letter will serve as a formal Notice of 
Violation. Failure to remedy these violations within the specified timeframes may result in 
possible further action, which may include monetary penalties.  
 
To bring this site into compliance with the terms and conditions of the 2021 general NPDES 
permit for discharges of stormwater associated with construction activities, the division requests 
that you immediately implement and maintain all necessary measures to ensure this site’s 
stormwater discharge(s) have been treated to the maximum extent practicable.  
 



The division does not authorize access to private property and arrangements concerning the 
removal of sediment or other remediation efforts on adjoining properties must be settled between 
you and the adjacent landowners. No further work should be done in any stream or wetland areas 
until you have written authorization from the division. 
 
During our complaint investigation the division observed the following: 

 Posting of information not consistent with §7.2.1. of the 2021 general NPDES 
permit.  

 Failing erosion prevention and sediment control measures resulting in off-site 
sediment discharge §5.5.3.11e.  

 An insufficient buffer of an onsite stream resulting in sediment discharge and 
deposition §4.1.2. 

 Required twice-weekly inspections not readily available for review §5.5.3.11.  
 Required quarterly site assessments not readily available for review §5.5.3.8. & 

5.5.3.3.b. 
 Required rainfall logs and discharge monitoring reports not readily available for 

review §5.5.3.3.f.  
 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) not readily available for review 

§5.3.4.  
 
Achieve the following item(s) within the specified timeframe after receipt of this letter: 

1.) Re-establish 30-foot natural water quality riparian buffers within 7 days.    
 

2.) Submit a signed and dated modified SWPPP to address design failures within 15 days. 
 

3.) Repair and address all failing erosion prevention and sediment control measures in 
accordance with the signed and dated modified SWPPP within 7 days.  

 
4.) Submit completed and signed twice-weekly inspection reports from August 1st – 

September 30th, 2022 if available within 7-10 days 
 

5.) Submit signed and dated quarterly site assessments up until September 15th, 2022 if 
available within 7 days. 
 

6.) Submit rainfall logs and discharge monitoring reports from September 20th, 2021 – 
September 15th, 2022 if available within 7 days.  
 

7.) Schedule a follow-up visit with site personnel and DWR staff to take place within 30-45 
days of receipt of this letter. 

 
Be advised, these violations are being submitted to the Division of Water Resources Compliance 
and Enforcement Unit which may include monetary penalties. If you have any questions 
regarding this correspondence, please contact me at 629-666-0521 or by email at 
Clayton.Mahan@tn.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 



 
Clayton Mahan 
 
cc: Timmy Jennette, DWR Field Office 

Jessica Murphy, DWR Compliance and Enforcement 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

1 09/15/22 

Description 
Unbuffered stream on-site.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

2 09/15/22 

Description 
Sedimentation in unbuffered 
stream. 

 
 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. 

3 
 

Date 
 

09/15/22 

 

Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

4 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 

 

 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

5 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

6 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

7 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

8 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

9 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 
 

Photo No. Date 

 

10 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

12 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

13 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 
 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

14 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

15 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 

 



Photographic Log 

Client or Facility Name: Site Location: Project No.: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 36.067883, -87.084912 
TNR245340 

 
Photo No. Date 

 

16 09/15/22 

Description 
Failing EPSC measures in 
need of repair or maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Photo No. Date 

 

17 09/15/22 

Description 
Sedimentation at the above 
outfall due to failing EPSC 
measures. 
 

 



CN-1067 (Rev. 26MAR19)  RDA 2366 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
Division of Water Resources 

William R. Snodgrass Tennessee Tower, 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor, Nashville TN 37243 
1-888-891-8332 (TDEC) 

 
Compliance Inspection for General NPDES Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction Activities (CGP) 
 
 

Site/Project Name: Golf Club of DBI 
NPDES Tracking Number: TNR245340 
Date Coverage was Issued: 09/20/21 

Street Address or 
Location: 

Golf Club of Tennessee 
Start Date:  
Estimated End Date:  

Site  
Description: 

Mass Grading for new golf course. 
Latitude (dd.dddd): 36.067883 
Longitude (-dd.dddd): -87.084912 

County(ies):  Cheatham  
EFO: 
Nashville 

MS4 Jurisdiction:  No MS4 
Acres Disturbed: 235.2 
Total Acres:       

 

Name of Permittee 
(Developer/Operator): 

 

Name of Official Contact: David Ingram  Email:  david.ingram@dbibeverage.com Contact Phone:  

Address:   City:  
State: 
«Mailing_State» 

Zip:  
 

Construction Phase:  Site preparation      Grading      Construction      Final Stabilization 
Inspection Purpose:  Routine      Follow-up      Complaint      NOT 

 

 Yes No Comments 

Have all construction activities stopped and 70% uniform permanent cover established?         
 

 Yes No Comments 

Notable impacts to waters as a result of site activities/discharges?   See notes 

Evidence of insufficiently treated stormwater discharges at outfall locations?   See notes 

Evidence of structural EPSC measure failure/absence?   See notes 

Evidence of non-structural EPSC measure failure/absence?   See notes 

Unauthorized discharges?         

Evidence of offsite impacts?         

Evidence of construction buffer disturbance?         
Compliance Evaluation: Any Y = recommend NOV/EAR or follow-up - date:        
                                            Any Y = recommend follow-up ( email, letter, inspection, etc.) - date:        

 

 Yes No Comments 

Are copies of the SWPPP & inspection reports on site or made available?   Not readily available 

Has SWPPP been implemented & satisfactory?   Unknown 

Are 2/week inspections being performed?   Unknown 

Are inspection reports completed & signed?   Unknown 

Are inspection reports filled out by a qualified EPSC inspector?   Unknown 
Compliance Evaluation: Any N = recommend follow-up (email, letter, inspection, etc.) date:        

 

 Yes No Comments 

Are there ARAP violations or unauthorized stream/wetland alteration?   Unbuffered stream 
Compliance Evaluation: Y = perform follow-up ARAP inspection - date:        

 
 
 

TDEC Personnel/Information  EFO: Nashville 
  
 

Inspector’s Name (Print):   
Clayton Mahan  Signature:  

Date: 09/15/22 

Time: 14:00 
 
  



 Silt fencing along site perimeter is observed to be damaged, or at capacity in numerous locations. Many 
rock check dams were observed to be at or above capacity, and needing to me maintained (see photos 5-
17).  

 Sediment basins appeared to be completely absent from the site. 
 Some sediment deposition was observed in multiple streams near site outfalls or onsite (see photos 1,2 & 

4). 
 Insufficient or failing erosion prevention and sediment control measures at numerous outfalls (see photos 

3,6 &7) 
 An onsite stream is completely lacking a natural riparian buffer resulting in sediment runoff and deposition 

(see photos 1-2). 
 No SWPPP box, paperwork, or inspection reports were found onsite. The site was accessed via the west 

side construction entrance near Bronson Way.  





4/26/23, 10:44 AM ARAP NOC

https://apex.tdec.tn.gov:7777/apex/f?p=2007:51:2498182011639:::::&success_msg=QWN0aW9uIFByb2Nlc3NlZC4%2FSrg3IXo1v4B1ncBrKkO4xfsah… 1/1

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

William R. Snodgrass - Tennessee Tower
312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 11th Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243-1102

ARAP Tracking No. NR2304.128

Notice of Coverage (NOC) under the Aquatic Resource Alteration General Permit for
Sediment Removal for Stream Remediation

Under authority of the Tennessee Water Quality Control Act of 1977 (TWQCA, §§ T.C.A. 69-3-101 et seq.) the Division of Water
Resources has determined the activity described below would not violate applicable water quality standards.

This activity is governed by the General Permit for Sediment Removal for Stream Remediation issued pursuant to the TWQCA.
The work must be accomplished in conformance with accepted plans, specifications, data and other information submitted in
support of application NR2304.128 and the terms and conditions set forth in the general permit.

Permittee name: The Golf Club of DBI, LLC The Golf Club of DBI, LLC

Authorized work:
Manual sediment removal from onsite watercourses using hand tools such as buckets and
shovels.

Location: South Harpeth Road, Kingston Springs, TN 37082, Cheatham County
Latitude: 36.0743
Longitude: -87.079705
Waterbody name: UNT S Harpeth River
Effective date: 04/26/2023
Expiration date: 04/07/2025

This does not preclude requirements of other federal, state or local laws. In particular, work shall not commence until the
applicant has received the federal section 404 permit from the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers, a section 26a permit from the
Tennessee Valley Authority or authorization under a Tennessee NPDES Storm Water Construction Permit where necessary. This
permit may also serve as a federal section 401 Water Quality Certification (pursuant to 33 U.S.C. §1341) since the planned activity
was reviewed and the division has reasonable assurance that the activity will be conducted in a manner that will not violate
applicable water quality standards (T.C.A. §§ 69-3-101 et seq. or provisions of sections 301, 302, 303, 306 or 307 of The Clean
Water Act). The 401 Water Quality Certification Justifications and Citations related to the procedural requirements of §121.7(d)
can be found here. A paper copy of the certifications and justifications can also be obtained by contacting Water.Permits@tn.gov
or calling (615) 532-0359.

The state of Tennessee may modify, suspend or revoke this authorization should the state determine that the activity results in
more than an insignificant degradation of applicable water quality standards or violation of the TWQCA. Failure to comply with
permit terms may result in penalties in accordance with T.C.A. §69-3-115.

Print

https://www.tn.gov/environment/permit-permits/water-permits1/aquatic-resource-alteration-permit--arap-.html
mailto:Water.Permits@tn.gov?Subject=%20Question%20-%20Tracking%20Number












1  

BYLAWS OF THE KINGSTON SPRINGS, TN 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
ARTICLE 1 – Authority and Purpose 

 
Section 1 - These by-laws are adopted pursuant to authority granted by the Tennessee Code 
Annotated, Title 13, Chapter 3 and Section 13-3-102 whereas the Town of Kingston Springs 
Regional Planning Commission shall also serve as the Municipal Planning Commission.  

 
Section 2 - The objectives and purposes of the Town of Kingston Springs Regional Planning 
Commission shall be as set forth in Title 13, Chapter 3, Sections 101 - 104 of the Tennessee 
Code Annotated, amendments and supplements thereto, and those powers and duties delegated to 
the Planning Commission by the TN Department of Economic and Community Development in 
accordance with T.C.A. Title 13, Chapter 3, Section 101 - 104 enabling statutes (attached). 

 
Section 3 - The name of the Planning Commission shall be the Town of Kingston Springs 
Regional Planning Commission, hereinafter referred to as the Planning Commission. 

 
Section 4 - The principal office of the Planning Commission shall be at City Hall, 396 Springs 
St., Kingston Springs, TN 37082. 

 
ARTICLE 2 – Officers and Staff  

 
Section 1 - The officers of the Planning Commission shall be Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and 
Secretary. 

 
Section 2 - The Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary shall be elected at the regular meeting 
held in January of each year from among the appointed members and shall serve for a term of 
one year, with eligibility for re-election. The Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary shall hold 
office until successors are elected. 

 
Section 3 - The Chairman shall preside at the meetings of the Planning Commission, may vote 
on matters coming before the commission and should refrain from making motions and sign 
documents and contracts when required. 

 
Section 4 - The Vice-Chairman shall serve in the absence of the Chairman, assuming all duties of 
the Chairman. 

 
Section 5 - Should the Chairman not be in attendance at a meeting, the Vice-Chairman shall 
serve as Chairman. Should both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman be absent, the Secretary 
shall conduct the meeting during the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, assuming 
all duties of the Chairman.  

Section 6 - The Secretary shall sign all official documents for the commission and designate a 
staff member to provide notice of meetings and ensure proper legal notice of hearings, transcribe 
the minutes, attend to correspondence and maintain the records of the Planning Commission. 
Prior to recording final subdivision plats in the Register’s Office of Cheatham County, the 
Secretary shall sign approved Final Plats submitted to the Planning Commission. 



2  

Section 7 - Should the Chairman resign or be unable to continue as Chairman, the Vice- 
Chairman shall serve for the remainder of the term. 

 
ARTICLE 3 – Members 

 
Section 1 - The Planning Commission shall consist of nine members, including the Chairman, 
Vice-Chairman and Secretary. One of the members shall be the Mayor. One of the members shall 
be a member of the City Commission appointed by the City Commission; all other members 
shall be selected by the Mayor. One member shall reside within the Urban Growth Boundary of 
the Town of Kingston Springs, TN.  

 
Section 2 - The terms of the Mayor and City Commission appointment shall run with their 
respective terms of office. All members may be reappointed to serve more than one term. 

 
Section 3 - The Mayor shall fill vacancies in the terms of appointed members. 

 
Section 4 - The Mayor shall have the power to remove appointed members at his or her pleasure. 

 
ARTICLE 4 – Staff Duties 

 
Section 1 - The Planner and Engineer shall serve as appointed staff support for the Planning 
Commission. The Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission shall be responsible for 
appointing the Planner and Engineer as provided in T.C.A. § 13-3-103. Expenses related to 
contract employment of a Planner and Engineer shall be as determined and within the funds 
approved by the City Commission. Staff shall provide reports for all Agenda items seven (7) 
days prior to the meeting. 

 
Section 2 – Additional professional staff shall be provided for the Kingston Springs Regional 
Planning Commission as determined by the Planning Commission and within the funds approved 
by the City Commission. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – Meetings 

 
Section 1 - Regular meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held on the second Thursday 
of each month at 7:00 P.M. at the Beck Meeting Hall or at such other place as the Planning 
Commission may designate and advertise in advance. 

 
Section 2 - The Chairman, when deemed necessary, shall call and designate the time and place of 
a special meeting. The Secretary shall notify all members of the commission in advance of 
such special meeting. The notice of a special meeting shall be advertised as required by state 
law, shall specify its purpose and no other business may be considered at the special meeting. 

 
Section 3 - All regular and special meetings shall be open to the general public.  
 
Public Comments.  Public comments will be allowed for all regular agenda items and items 
removed from the agenda.  Upon being recognized by the Chair, any person wishing to speak shall 
state his/her name and address and shall limit comments to the agenda item being discussed.  A 
speaker representing a business, institution or organization may give the address of the business, 
institution or organization rather than the speaker’s home address.  Public Comments shall be: 



3  

a.    limited to three (3) minutes for all regular agenda items and items removed from the Agenda 
and an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to ten (10) minutes unless extended by 
vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 
b.    The Chairman shall limit comments to the Agenda items, to relevant, non-repetitive comments 
and shall restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 

 
Section 4 - Notice of regular meetings shall be published prior to each meeting in at least one 
newspaper of general circulation within the planning region 15 days before the meeting. As part 
of the notice, an agenda of the items to be considered at the meeting shall also be published. 
Notice of special meetings shall be advertised as required by state law.  

 
Section 5 – Notice of regular and special meetings shall be published on the city’s website with 
an agenda of the items to be considered at the meeting as required by the City Commission. 

 
Section 6 – Five (5) members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the 
purpose of conducting business. 
 
ARTICLE 6 – Order of Business 

 
The Order of Business at regular meetings shall be: 

 
(1) Call the meeting to order 
(2) Public Comments 
(3) Approve the minutes of prior meetings 
(4) Public hearing (when required) 
(5) Old Business 
(6) New Business 
(7) Other Business – Discussion Only 
(8) Announcements 
(9) Adjournment 

 
The order of presentation of Old and New Business shall be: 

(1) Presentation by staff of the item 
(2) Presentation by the applicant 
(3) Discussion by the Planning Commission members 
(4) Motion and second by the Planning Commission members 
(5) Discussion on the motion – finding of facts 
(6) Vote of the planning commission members 

 
Article 7 – Voting 
 
A majority of the Planning Commission members present and constituting a quorum shall be 
necessary to decide items requiring action. At the discretion of the Chairman, the voting on 
questions shall be by roll call, and the ayes and nays shall be entered upon the minutes of the 
meeting, except that, when the vote of all of the Planning Commission members present is 
unanimous, recording the unanimous vote shall be sufficient.  
 
 
 



4  

ARTICLE 8 – Minutes 
 
Section 1 - The Planning Commission shall speak only through its minutes, which shall be 
prepared by the Secretary, or their designee. Insofar as possible, the minutes shall be a verbatim 
record of the proceedings. Roberts Rules of Order are adopted as the prevailing procedure of 
business in Planning Commission Meetings. The minutes shall contain the following information: 
 

(1) The kind of meeting, such as regular or special. 
(2) The meeting date and place. 
(3) The fact of the regular chairman and secretary being present, or, in their absence, the 

names of substitutes. 
(4) Whether the minutes of the previous meetings were read and approved. 
(5) The main motions and the name of the Planning Commission member making the 

motion, and the name of the Planning Commission Member who seconded the motion. 
(6) The action taken on the motion and the finding leading to the action taken. 
(7) The names of the persons addressing the Planning Commission and a general statement 

summary of their comments. 
(8) The hours of the meeting and its adjournment. 

 
Section 2 – A copy of the minutes shall be delivered to the Planning Commission members for 
review prior to the next regular meeting. 

 
Section 3 – The minutes shall not be considered official, and therefore not distributed for public 
review, until they have been approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
Section 4 – Upon approval of the minutes, they shall be signed by the Chairman. 

 
ARTICLE 9 – Committees 

 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chairman for purposes and terms, which the 
Planning Commission members approve. 
 
Committee appointments – Planning Commission Staff. The Planning Commission Chairman 
and the Mayor shall be appointed to the committee for oversight and supervision of Planning 
Commission Staff to include the Staff Planner and Staff Engineer. The Committee may review 
any major staffing issue or administrative procedure that may arise and shall make 
recommendations to the Planning Commission regarding the activities, duties, requirements, and 
work product.  
 
ARTICLE 10 - Amendments 

 
These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the entire membership of the Planning 
Commission. 

 
Adopted: ________________________ 

 
 

Amended: _______________________ 
 



1  

BYLAWS OF THE TOWN OF KINGSTON SPRINGS, TN 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
ARTICLE 1 – Authority and Purpose 

 
Section 1 - These by-laws are adopted pursuant to authority granted by the Tennessee Code 
Annotated, Title 13, Chapter 3 and Section 13-3-102 whereas the Town of Kingston Springs 
Regional Planning Commission shall also serve as the Municipal Planning Commission.  

 
Section 2 - The objectives and purposes of the Town of Kingston Springs Regional Planning 
Commission shall be as set forth in Title 13, Chapter 3, Sections 101 - 104 of the Tennessee 
Code Annotated, amendments and supplements thereto, and those powers and duties delegated 
to the Planning Commission by the TN Department of Economic and Community 
Development in accordance with T.C.A. Title 13, Chapter 3, Section 101 - 104 enabling 
statutes (attached). 

 
Section 3 - The name of the Planning Commission shall be the Town of Kingston Springs 
Regional Planning Commission, hereinafter referred to as the Planning Commission. 

 
Section 4 - The principal office of the Planning Commission shall be at City Hall, 396 Springs 
St., Kingston Springs, TN 37082. 

 
ARTICLE 2 – Officers and Staff  

 
Section 1 - The officers of the Planning Commission shall be Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and 
Secretary. 

 
Section 2 - The Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Secretary shall be elected at the regular 
meeting held in January of each year from among the appointed members and shall serve for a 
term of one year, with eligibility for re-election. The Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Secretary 
shall hold office until successors are elected. 

 
Section 3 - The Chairman shall preside at the meetings of the Planning Commission, may vote 
on matters coming before the commission and shall have authority to sign documents and 
contracts when required as authorized by the Planning Commission. 

 
Section 4 - The Vice-Chairman shall serve in the absence of the Chairman, assuming all duties of 
the Chairman. 

 
Section 5 - Should the Chairman not be in attendance at a meeting, the Vice-Chairman shall 
serve as Chairman. Should both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman be absent, the Secretary 
shall conduct the meeting during the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman, 
assuming all duties of the Chairman.  

Section 6 - The Secretary shall sign all official documents for the commission may appoint a 
designate to provide notice of meetings and ensure proper legal notice of hearings, transcribe 



2  

the minutes, attend to correspondence and maintain the records of the Planning Commission. 
Prior to recording final subdivision plats in the Register’s Office of Cheatham County, the 
Secretary shall sign approved Final Plats submitted to the Planning Commission. 
 
Section 7 - Should the Chairman resign or be unable to continue as Chairman, the Vice- 
Chairman shall serve for the remainder of the term. 

 
ARTICLE 3 – Members 

 
Section 1 - The Planning Commission shall consist of nine members, including the Chairman, 
Vice-Chairman and Secretary. The members shall be appointed and serve in accordance with 
state law. 

 
ARTICLE 4 – Staff Duties 

 
Section 1 - The Planner and Engineer shall serve as appointed staff support for the Planning 
Commission. The Kingston Springs Regional Planning Commission shall be responsible for 
appointing the Planner and Engineer as provided in T.C.A. § 13-3-103. Expenses related to 
contract employment of a Planner and Engineer shall be as determined and within the funds 
approved by the City Commission. Staff shall provide reports for all Agenda items seven (7) 
days prior to the meeting. 

 
Section 2 – Additional professional staff shall be provided for the Kingston Springs Regional 
Planning Commission as determined by the Planning Commission and within the funds 
approved by the City Commission. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – Meetings 

 
Section 1 - Regular meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held on the second 
Thursday of each month at 7:00 P.M. at the Beck Meeting Hall or at such other place as the 
Planning Commission may designate and advertise in advance. 

 
Section 2 - The Chairman, when deemed necessary, shall call and designate the time and place 
of a special meeting; the Secretary or the Secretary’s designee, shall notify all members of the 
commission in advance of such special meeting. The notice of a special meeting shall be 
advertised as required by state law, shall specify its purpose and no other business may be 
considered at the special meeting. The Vice-Chairman may call such meeting in the absence of 
the Chairman. 

 
Section 3 - All regular and special meetings shall be open to the general public.  
 
Public Comments.  Public comments will be allowed for all regular agenda items and items 
removed from the agenda.  Upon being recognized by the Chair, any person wishing to speak 
shall state his/her name and address and shall limit comments to the agenda item being discussed.  
A speaker representing a business, institution or organization may give the address of the 
business, institution or organization rather than the speaker’s home address.   



3  

Public Comments shall be: 
a.    limited to three (3) minutes per speaker for all regular agenda items and items removed from 
the Agenda and shall have an overall time limit for all comments on an agenda item to twelve 
(12) minutes unless extended by vote of a majority of the Planning Commission 
b.    The Chairman shall limit comments to the Agenda items, to relevant, non-repetitive 
comments and shall restrict comments that are disruptive in nature. 

 
Section 4 - Notice of regular meetings shall be published prior to each meeting in at least one 
newspaper of general circulation within the planning region 15 days before the meeting. As 
part of the notice, an agenda of the items to be considered at the meeting shall also be 
published. Notice of special meetings shall be advertised as required by state law.  

 
Section 5 – Notice of regular and special meetings shall be published on the city’s website 
with an agenda of the items to be considered at the meeting as required by the City 
Commission. 

 
Section 6 – Five (5) members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the 
purpose of conducting business. 
 
ARTICLE 6 – Order of Business 

 
The Order of Business at regular meetings shall be: 

 
(1) Call the meeting to order 
(2) Public Comments 
(3) Approve the minutes of prior meetings 
(4) Public hearing (when required) 
(5) Old Business 
(6) New Business 
(7) Other Business – Discussion Only 
(8) Announcements 
(9) Adjournment 

 
The order of presentation of Old and New Business shall be: 

(1) Presentation by staff of the item 
(2) Presentation by the applicant 
(3) Discussion by the Planning Commission members 
(4) Motion and second by the Planning Commission members 
(5) Discussion on the motion – finding of facts 
(6) Vote of the planning commission members 

 
Article 7 – Voting 
 
Unless otherwise specified by law or in these Bylaws, a majority of the Planning Commission 
members present and constituting a quorum shall be necessary to decide items requiring action. 
At the discretion of the Chairman, the voting on questions shall be by roll call, and the ayes and 



4  

nays shall be entered upon the minutes of the meeting, except that, when the vote of all of the 
Planning Commission members present is unanimous, recording the unanimous vote shall be 
sufficient. Unless otherwise specified by law or in these bylaws, any motion made at a meeting 
at which no more than a quorum is present, shall require four votes to approve or deny any 
motion made, excluding a motion to table, which shall only require three votes for approval. All 
votes shall be taken in compliance with state statutes governing the Planning Commission. 
 
ARTICLE 8 – Minutes 
 
Section 1 - The Planning Commission shall speak only through its minutes, which shall be 
prepared by the Secretary, or their designee. Insofar as possible, the minutes shall be captured 
in a written record of the proceedings. Roberts Rules of Order are adopted as the prevailing 
procedure of business in Planning Commission Meetings. Insofar as possible, the portion of the 
minutes reflecting motions and votes shall be captured in written record of the proceedings. The 
minutes shall contain the following information: 
 

(1) The kind of meeting, such as regular or special. 
(2) The meeting date and place. 
(3) The fact of the regular chairman and secretary being present, or, in their absence, the 

names of substitutes. 
(4) Whether the minutes of the previous meetings were read and approved. 
(5) The main motions and the name of the Planning Commission member making the 

motion, and the name of the Planning Commission Member who seconded the motion. 
(6) The action taken on the motion and the finding leading to the action taken. 
(7) The names of the persons addressing the Planning Commission and a general statement 

summary of their comments. 
(8) The hours of the meeting and its adjournment. 

 
Section 2 – A copy of the minutes shall be delivered to the Planning Commission members for 
review prior to the next regular meeting. 

 
Section 3 – The minutes shall not be considered official, and therefore not distributed for 
public review, until they have been approved by the Planning Commission. If approved 
minutes are distributed pursuant to an Open Records Request, they shall be marked “Draft 
Only - Unapproved. 

 
Section 4 – Upon approval of the minutes, they shall be signed by the Chairman. 
 
ARTICLE 9 – Committees 

 
Special committees may be appointed by the Chairman for purposes and terms, which the 
Planning Commission members approve. 
 
Section 1 - Planning Commission Committee on Administration and Staff. The Planning 
Commission Chairman and the Mayor shall be appointed to the committee for oversight and 
supervision of Planning Commission Staff to include the Staff Planner and Staff Engineer and 



5  

to review administrative processes and procedures. The Committee may review any major 
staffing issue or administrative procedure that may arise and shall make recommendations to 
the Planning Commission regarding the activities, duties, requirements, and work product. 
Any Committee meeting shall be advertised as Special Called Meetings and advertised three 
days prior to a special called meeting to in accordance with TN law.  
 
ARTICLE 10 – CONFLICT OF INTERESTS 
 
In the event that any member shall have a personal interest of any kind in a matter then before 
the Kingston Springs Municipal-Regional Planning Commission, she/he shall disclose his/her 
interest and be disqualified from voting upon the matter, and the Secretary shall so record in the 
minutes that no vote was cast by such member. 
 
ARTICLE 11 – APPLICANT SUBMISSIONS TO PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
All project, development, and plan submissions to the Planning Commission shall be submitted 
according to TN Statutes and Local Ordinance for Public Notice for inclusion on the Agenda.  
 
A "Development Design Certification” shall accompany any Development Plan submitted to 
the Planning Commission. Such certification shall indicate that the plan either fully complies 
with all provisions the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations or that the plan complies 
with such provisions with specifically noted exceptions. Any variance(s) requested from these 
regulations shall conform to the provisions of the KS Regional Planning Commission 
Subdivision Regulations Section 1-111, Variances; and The Town of Kingston Springs Zoning 
Ordinance. This certification requirement provides assurance that the proposed plan can be 
accomplished within the current regulations of the community. 
 
ARTICLE 12 – COMPLAINTS 
 
Questions and complaints regarding staff violations or errors in the application of 
municipal codes, professional standards, decisions, or direction to applicants should be 
directed to the Planning Commission Committee on Administration and Staff. Complaints 
shall be in writing and signed by the person making the complaint, and shall set forth in 
reasonable detail the facts upon which the complaint is based. 

 
The Committee on Administration and Staff shall investigate any credible complaint 
against a staff member charged with violating provisions of Zoning Ordinance, 
Subdivision Regulations, and/or Municipal Codes or may undertake an investigation on 
their own initiative when information is filed indicating a possible violation, and take 
appropriate action to resolve the complaint.  

 
The Committee on Administration and Staff may: 

 
(1) refer the matter for a legal opinion and/or recommendations for action and 

resolution. If unresolved the Committee on Administration and Staff may; 
(2) refer the matter to the full Planning Commission which shall determine that the 



6  

complaint has merit, determine that the complaint does not have merit, or 
determine that the complaint has sufficient merit to warrant further 
investigation. If the Commission determines that a complaint warrants further 
investigation, it shall investigate the complaint and determine disciplinary 
action if warranted; 

(3) The interpretation that a reasonable person in the circumstances would apply 
shall be used in interpreting this section.  

(4) All members and staff will review the complaint policy and procedures and be 
briefed on any issues of interest related to this policy. 

 
Amendments 
 
These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the entire membership of the Planning 
Commission. 
 

 
DATE: _____________________     Adopted: ________________________________________ 

  Chairman, KS Regional Planning Commission 
 
 
 

                                                            Adopted: ________________________________________ 
  Secretary, KS Regional Planning Commission 

 

                                                          
                                                            Amended: _______________________________________ 
 
                                                            Amended: _______________________________________ 
 
        








	Packet Cover
	KS Regional Planning Commission Agenda 8 June 2023
	May 11, 2023 KS Regional Planning Commission Minutes DRAFT
	Erosion Control and Stabilization Report  5.15.23
	Golf Club 5-9-23 EPSC REPORT
	Davey Resource Group - 15 MAY 2023 ARAP ACTIVITIES PROPOSED
	DWR-NR2304.128-Application-20230418-2366
	Golf Club of DBI_General ARAP_Sediment Removal_Additional Information_Final _comp 17 APRIL 2023
	ICGEN
	NOC - Permit Information
	KS EXISTING PLANNING COMMISSION BYLAWS
	KS REGIONAL PC BYLAWS - PROPOSED - M. Brooke comments
	KS REGIONAL PC BYLAWS - Proposed 13 April 2023
	SP-FARMERS MARKET-FINALPLAT-4-23-23 (1)
	SP-ERON SUBDIVISION-FINAL (6)
	SP-RESUBLOT5-MERRYLOGGLEN-FINALPLAT-REVISED4-26-23 (2)

	Site or Project Name: The Golf Club of DBI
	NPDES Tracking Number TNR: 245802
	Has rainfall been: TN Golf Club
	Date of Inspection: 5-9-23
	Current approximate disturbed acreage: 50
	Name of Inspector: Corey Wallace
	Current weatherground conditions: sunny wet
	Assessor: 2x WK   3.75"
	Inspector s TNEPSC Certification Number: 146842
	Site Assessment Yes No: 
	undefined: Off
	undefined_2: On
	Assessor s TNEPSC Level IICPESC number: 
	Check the box if the following items are onsite: 
	undefined_3: X
	Notice of Coverage NOC: 
	undefined_4: X
	Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan SWPPP: 
	undefined_5: X
	Weekly inspection documentation: 
	undefined_6: X
	Site contact information: 
	Offsite Reference Rain Gage Location: 
	undefined_7: X
	Offsite Reference Rain Gage Location_2: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Yes
	Check Box11: Yes
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Yes
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Yes
	Check Box19: Off
	Text1: 
	Site or Project Name_2: DBI
	NPDES Tracking Number TNR_2: 245802
	If a concrete washout facility is located on site is it clearly identified on the project and: TGC
	Date of Inspection_2: 5-9-23
	Check if deficienciescorrective measures have been reported on a previous form: Off
	Comment Section If the answer is No for any of the above describe the problem and summarize corrective actions to be taken Otherwise describe any pertinent observations: 1. Hole 5 and 7 need buildup removed from fence on RH side of greens.2. Hole 9 has SF repairs  and buildup removal in a few locations along both sides of fairway and by the tee and green.3. Cart path from 9F down to 18 F has SF washout on LH side.4. Checks in draw on 10 need to be cleaned and FS checks need to be repaired.5. Draws on hole 11 need to have sediment removed from fence and FS  checks, also draw closest to the green needs FS checks put back in place and have SF repaired.6. Holes 12 and 13  need sediment removed and fence stood back up in several locations along RH side of holes.7. Recommend temp controls be installed on Hole 14 along LH side above wooded area.8. 15-17 needs sediment removed and fence repairs on low side of course from tees to greens.9. Hole 18 needs checks cleaned on LH side along cart path.10. Minor track out on S. Harpeth but Heritage is performing regular sweeping.Heritage has multiple crews working around site repairing fence and digging out sediment buildup. Some areas inaccessible due to wet slopes from rain event early this morning. Majority of concerns on site are from sediment buildup, fence held up good aside from a few locations. Heritage to have concerns addressed  before next rain events for-casted for end of the week..
	Inspector Name and Title: Corey Wallace EPSC Insp
	Signature: 
	Date: 5-9-23
	Primary Permittee Name and Title: 
	Signature_2: 
	Date_2: 
	Check Box20: Yes
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Yes
	Check Box25: Off


